
 1 

 

 
 

PROPOSED AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE COUNCIL 

December 16, 2019 - 7:00 P.M. 
Page Memorial Building 

Village Council Chambers 

839 Fourth Avenue, Lake Odessa, Michigan 48849 

 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

III. Roll Call 
 

IV. Approval of Agenda 
 

V. Citizen Comment on Agenda Items: 

Under the Open Meetings Act, any citizen may come forward at this time and make comment on 

items that appear on the agenda.  Comments will be limited to five minutes per person.  Anyone who 

would like to speak shall state his/her name and address for the record.  Remarks should be confined 

to the question at hand and addressed to the chair in a courteous tone.  No person shall have the right 

to speak more than once on any particular subject until all other persons wishing to be heard on that 

subject have had the opportunity to speak. 
 

VI. Minutes:  To approve regular meeting minutes for November 18, 2019 meeting minutes 
 

VII. Bills: 

a) Approve bills equal to or less than $3,000.00 each from 11/1//2019 to 11/30/2019 

b) Approve bills in excess of $3,000.00 each, including: 
  

1. Homeworks/ Tri-County Electric Cooperative – $3,666.96 – Water Plant Electricity 

(Paid)  

2. Ionia County Drain Commissioner -- $6,422.03 – Annual Drain Assessment (Paid) 
 

VIII. Consent Agenda 

The following consent agenda will normally be adopted without discussion; however, at the request of 

any council member, any item may be removed from the consent agenda for discussion. 
 

Reports and Minutes:  To accept and file the following: 
 

a) Lake Odessa Arts Commission Board Meeting Minutes and Financials – November 2019 

b) Lake Odessa Community Library Board Minutes – October 2019 

c) Lake Odessa Zoning Administrator Monthly Report 

 

 
 



 2 

IX. Departmental Reports: 

a) Village Manager’s Report 

b) Police Department 

c) Department of Public Works  

d) Finance Report  

X. Committee Reports 

a)   Personnel / Finance Committee 

b) Recreation / Special Projects Committee 
 

XI. Presentations 

a)  None 
 

XII. Discussion Items 

a)         Articles of Incorporation – Lakewood Recreation Authority 
 

XIII. Public Hearing 

a) None 
 

XIV. Unfinished Business  

i)       None 
 

XV. New Business: 

a) Introduction and First Reading of Proposed Articles of Incorporation for the Lakewood 

Recreational Authority 

b) Proposed Resolution 2019-42: Approving the Purchase of a 2021 108SD Freightliner Chasis 

from D&K Truck Company and the Outfitting of this Equipment from Truck and Trailer 

Specialists 

c) Approval of the Village Council Meeting Schedule for 2020 

d) Approval of Budget Amendments as Submitted 

 

XVI. Miscellaneous Correspondence: 
a)    None 

 

XVII. Trustee Comments 
 

XVIII. Public Comment 
 

XIX. Adjournment 



   

VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

November 18, 2019 (DRAFT) 
PAGE MEMORIAL BUILDING 

 
Meeting called to order at 7:00 pm by President Banks. 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
Council present:   Karen Banks, Mike Brighton, Kay Hartzler, Charles Jaquays, Mel McCloud, Brandy Walkington, 
Mike Rudisill 
Absent: None 
Staff present: Patrick Reagan, Pearl Ward, Kendra Backing 
Visitors present:  Daryl Hartzler, Carolyn Mayhew, Carrie Johnson, Heidi Reed, Bonnie Mattson, Kim Aguirre, 
Steve Hicks, Jessica Courtright 
 
Motion by McCloud, support by Walkington to approve the revised agenda as presented.  Motion carried.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
President Banks asked council members if it would be appropriate to table item A) Introduction and First Reading of 
Proposed Articles of Incorporation for the Lakewood Recreational Authority. Regan stated the attorney is currently 
reviewing the articles of incorporation for the authority.   
 
Visitors Mattson, Reed and Hicks left the meeting at 7:05pm.  
 
Carrie Johnson asked to bring to council’s attention the Habitat for Humanity house located on 4th Avenue.  Johnson 
stated that Habitat for Humanity is at risk for losing funding for the house if the house is not finished by the end of 
the year.  Johnson stated volunteers are needed in all areas to complete the house.   
 
Johnson and Mayhew left the meeting at 7:10pm.   
 
MINUTES 
Motion by McCloud, support by Jaquays to approve minutes of October 21, 2019.  Motion carried. 
 
BILLS 
Motion by McCloud, support by Walkington to approve expenditures equal to or less than $3,000.00 for the period 
10/1/2019 thru 10/31/2019.  Motion carried.  
 
Motion by Brighton, support by Jaquays to approve payment of invoices in excess of $3,000.00 items as follows:  

1. Homeworks/ Tri-County Electric Cooperative – $4,429.92 – Water Plant Electricity (Paid)  
2. Gametime -- $13,200.00 – Poured in Place for Swing in Village Park  
3. M&M Outdoor Services – Tree Removals -- $5,950.00 (Paid)  
4. Pavement Maintenance Systems, LLC – Resurfacing of Jordan Lake Avenue, Bonanza, and Fourth Avenue 

-- $136,045.18 (Paid)  
5. PK Contracting – Pavement Markings -- $7,176.10 (Paid) 

Motion carried.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion by Rudisill, support by Brighton to approve the consent agenda, as follows:  

a)  Lake Odessa Arts Commission Board Meeting Minutes and Financials – October 2019  
b)  Lake Odessa Arts Commission Meeting Schedule for 2020  



VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
NOVEMBER 18, 2019 COUNCIL MINUTES, PAGE 2 

c)  Village of Lake Odessa Downtown Development Authority Minutes and Financials – September 2019  
d)  Village of Lake Odessa Downtown Development Authority Meeting Schedule for 2020  
e)  Village of Lake Odessa 2020-2021 Budget Schedule  

Motion carried.  
 
DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
Manager’s Report:  Reagan discussed New Business Items with council.    
 
Police Report:  Backing had nothing additional to report.  Council Walkington was pleased to see the Central Public 
Safety Software worked with the Barry County Dispatch System as well the Ionia County Dispatch System.   
DPW Report:  There was nothing additional to report.  
Finance: Ward had nothing additional to report.       
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
Personnel/Finance Committee:  There was no update.     
Recreation/Special Projects Committee:  There was no update.    
 
PRESENTATIONS 
There were no presentations.    
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
There were no discussion items.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Motion by McCloud, support by Walkington to open public hearing at 7:15pm for proposed Resolution 2019-37: 
Approving the Vacation of a Portion of Undeveloped Village Owned Right-of-Way Between Lots 35 and 36 on 
Jordan Lake Avenue, Between Clark Street and Bonanza Road in the Village of Lake Odessa.   
 
There was no public comment.   
 
Motion by Walkington, support by Jaquays to close public hearing at 7:16pm.  
 
Motion by Walkington, support by Brighton to table new business A) Introduction and First Reading of Proposed 
Articles of Incorporation for the Lakewood Recreational Authority.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Walkington, support by Brighton to adopt Proposed Resolution 2019-37: Approving the Vacation of a 
Portion of Undeveloped Village Owned Right-of-Way Between Lots 35 and 36 on Jordan Lake Avenue, Between 
Clark Street and Bonanza Road in the Village of Lake Odessa.   
 
Jaquays stated he was not in favor of the vacation and was concerned about the tax payer money being used for 
attorney fees regarding the matter.   
 
Brighton inquired about how many similar lots were located in the village.  Reagan stated very few lots if any were 
located in the village.  
 
Rudisill stated that the Wastewater Authority was not in favor of vacating the property.   
 
Walkington stated that this property was unique in the village.   
 
Council discussed the potential of setting or not setting a precedent.  Banks stated the property does not serve a 
public purpose and that if the alley was vacated the neighbor dispute would no longer be the village’s concern.  



VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
NOVEMBER 18, 2019 COUNCIL MINUTES, PAGE 3 

Banks informed council of review of minutes from decades ago that showed vacation of properties that did not serve 
the public.   
 
McCloud inquired about future requests based on partiality and preference.   
 
Jaquays stated he was concerned with future legal fees with the potential of similar future requests.   
 
Brighton suggested if the property owners were responsible for paying the legal fees would that help offset the 
attorney fees.  Banks agreed that an administrative fee could be looked at for future vacating requests.  Reagan 
agreed that an administrative fee would help offset costs to vacate.   
 
Motion dismissed with the following roll call vote:  Yes:  Walkington, Banks; No: McCloud, Jaquays, Hartzler, 
Brighton, Rudisill.   
 
Motion by Banks, support by Brighton to authorize the Village Manager to prepare a policy to impose an 
administrative fee for applications to vacate a street, alley or right-of-way.  Motion carried with the following roll 
call vote: Yes: Brighton, Walkington, Banks, Hartzler; No: McCloud, Jaquays, Rudisill.   
 
Motion by McCloud, support by Rudisill to adopt Proposed Resolution 2019-38: Approving, Authorizing, and 
Directing the Village Manager to Sign a Grant Agreement between the Village of Lake Odessa and the Michigan 
Council for Arts and Cultural Affairs.  Motion carried with the following roll call vote:  Yes:  McCloud, Jaquays, 
Hartzler, Brighton, Rudisill, Walkington, Banks; No: None.   
 
Motion by McCloud, support by Rudisill to adopt Proposed Resolution 2019-39: Approving the Purchase of Central 
Square Public Safety Software for the Village of Lake Odessa.  Motion carried with the following roll call vote:  
Yes:  McCloud, Jaquays, Hartzler, Brighton, Rudisill, Walkington, Banks; No: None.   
 
Motion by Jaquays, support by Brighton to adopt Proposed Resolution 2019-40: Approving the Auctioning of a 
2010 Chevrolet Impala.  Motion carried with the following roll call vote:  Yes:  McCloud, Jaquays, Hartzler, 
Brighton, Rudisill, Walkington, Banks; No: None.   
 
Motion by Brighton, support by Walkington to adopt Proposed Resolution 2019-41: Approving the Village 
President’s Appointment List as Presented for Various Village Posts, Boards and Committees.  Motion carried with 
the following roll call vote:  Yes:  McCloud, Jaquays, Hartzler, Brighton, Rudisill, Walkington, Banks; No: None.   
 
Motion by McCloud, support by Brighton to go into closed session Pursuant to Section 8(c) of the Michigan Open 
Meetings Act (PA 267 of 1976), to Discuss Strategy for the Negotiating of a Collective Bargaining Agreement.  
Motion carried.  Council entered closed session at 7:54pm.   
 
Motion by McCloud, support by Jaquays to return to open session at 8:01pm.  Motion carried.   
 
MISCELLANEOUS CORRESPONDENCE 
Council received correspondence from Jim Valentine, Director of Ionia County Central Dispatch – RE: Support for 
Central Square Public Safety Software Upgrade.   
 
TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
McCloud asked everyone to have a safe Thanksgiving.  
 
Jaquays wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.   
 
Hartzler had no comment.   



VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
NOVEMBER 18, 2019 COUNCIL MINUTES, PAGE 4 

 
Brighton inquired about budget preparations and forms.   
 
Rudisill had no comment.  
 
Walkington had no comment.  
 
Banks reminded council of the garland program and stated work on the Christmas pots will be next Monday evening 
at the ambulance garage.   
 
Reagan thanked Daryl Hartzler for delivering garland fliers downtown.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment.   
 
Meeting adjourned by President Banks at 8:06pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Pearl Ward 
Village Clerk / Treasurer 







1 
 

Minutes 

Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission 

Regular Meeting  
Monday, 11/4/2019 - 7:00 p.m. 

Page Memorial Building 
Lake Odessa, Michigan 

 
 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call 
Meeting called to order by Farrell, Chair at 7:08 
Present: Banks, Hermes, Farrell, Rodriguez, Mattson 
Absent: Hickey, Stafford, Wortley 
Visitors:  Lori Wortley 
 

2. Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Banks, support by Hermes to approve agenda.  All ayes; motion carried. 
 

3. Public Comment on Agenda Items 
None. 
 

4. Minutes  
Motion by Banks, support by Hermes to approve 10/7/19 minutes.  All ayes; motion carried. 

 
5. Finance 

a) Accounts payable – Motion by Hermes, supported by Mattson to approve accounts payable of 
$10.33 to Karen Banks for Flash drive and binder pouch.  All ayes; motion carried. 

 
b) Financial Report -Banks discussed financial deficit, stating that it will be covered when December 

grant payout is received.  Account is in good shape. 
 

6. Discussion Items 
a) Art in the Park 

1) Artist Applications – Rodriguez reported that there have been no new applications.  Total 
applications to date is 48. 
 

2) Rodriguez will send out confirmation letters to include information about the referral rebate 
program.  Banks will create electronic letterhead with new cellphone number. 
 

3) Grant awards: 
(a) 2019 Grant:  Banks reported she submitted a final report on the 2019 grant, including 

information explaining how the show went, revenue and expenses, visitor and artist 
feedback received, copies of marketing and advertising materials, etc.  Final grant payout of 
$822 will be received by end of December. 

 



2 
 

(b) 2020 Grant:  Arts Commission has received a grant in the amount of $6,858 which will be 
paid out in two installments:  $5,829.00 by the end of January 2020 and $1,029 in 
December of 2020 following submission of our final report.  Correspondence announcing 
the grant award has been sent to Gov. Whitmer, State Senator Nofs and State Rep. Calley.  
Sen. Nofs has contacted the Village and has indicated he plans to attend the 2020 Art in the 
Park.  Board consensus was that the Senator should be invited up on stage to address the 
audience. 

 
7. Future Meeting Dates 

Motion by Banks, supported by Farrell to set the 2020 meeting calendar, being the second Monday of 
each month at 7:00 p.m., and an “extra” meeting on Monday, 7/27, 7:00 p.m. before AITP.  All ayes; 
motion carried.  Election of officers and approval of 2020 budget will be on the January agenda. 
 

8. Board Member Comments 
Banks reported that Dennis Preston, the caricature artist, has saved the date of 2020 AITP, if we would 
like him to come back. 
Banks also reported that Patrick Reagan looked into insurance for wine tasting…approx.. $1,200.  The 
Board will continue to explore possibility of wine tasting at next AITP. 
 

9. Adjournment 
Without objection, meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 

 
Respectfully Submitted 
Judy Rodriguez/Secretary-Treasurer 

 
 



Lake Odessa Community Library Board Meeting 

October 23, 2019 

 

1. Meeting called to order by Pepper at 7:00pm.  

a. Present: Pepper, Deardorff, Jarvie, Miller, Goodemoot, Spitzley, Beard, Director 

Salgat 

b. Absent: Beglin 

2. Public Comment: None. 

3. The agenda was approved as written. 

4. The minutes from the September 25, 2019 meeting were reviewed.  Motion by Deardorff, 

support by Miller, to approve the meeting minutes as written.  Ayes all.  Carried.                                                                                                                                                                                

5. The treasurer’s report was reviewed. Snow removal quote of $3400 was added to Line 

Item 932: Building Repair and Maintenance. Motion by Deardorff, support by Spitzley, to 

approve and pay the monthly bills.  Ayes all.  Carried. 

6. Director’s Report:  

a. Several programs happening this month for all ages. Library will be open for Trick 

or Treating Halloween night with the Lakewood high school cast of The Addams 

Family.  

b. The building idea resumes with adding a “quiet” room to the library (a rough 

estimate of $5700). Seeking approval from the Friends of the Library to pay the 

expenses of these modifications to the library; further discussion as needed once 

details become firm.  

c. Director Salgat is recommending that all Library staff attend the Rural Library 

Conference in Traverse City with a total cost of approximately $3092. The Library 

would be closed on April 14 &15. State Aid Report finished on 10-2-19. 

7. Old Business: none. 

8. New Business: 

a. Policy Review: Rules of Behavior 

i. Motion by Jarvie, support by Miller, to approve the policy with slight 

amendments. Ayes all. Carried.  

b. Policy Review: Infested Materials 

i. Policy reviewed without changes.  

c. Review Employee Manual 

i. Further discussion needed regarding “paid time off” for part-time 

employees. Continue to include this “New Business” item in November 

and December.  

9. Friends of the Library 

a. Library Tea: November 9th, planning continues. Tickets on sale for $10/ticket. 

10.  Motion by Deardorff, support by Jarvie, to adjourn the meeting at 7:51pm. Ayes all. 

Carried.  



1 

 

 
 

Lake Odessa Village  
 

Zoning Administrator Report  
 

November 2019 
 

Permits: 
 
None 
 
 
Supplemental: 
 
None 
 
 
Miscellaneous 
Phone calls involved various appraisers checking on the zoning classification of assorted parcels.  
Other questions involved various questions regarding setbacks, fences, pools and permits. 
 
 
 
It has been a slow month except for inquiries into possible projects and construction. 
 



1  

REPORT TO THE VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA COUNCIL 

 
DATE December 16, 2019 

TO: President Karen Banks; Vice-President Mel McCloud; Trustee 

Brighton; Trustee Rudisill; Trustee Jaquays; Trustee Walkington; Trustee 

Hartzler 

 

FROM: Patrick Reagan, Village Manager  

 

RE: Manager's Report to Village Council 

 

President Banks and Village Council Members, 

 

Please find below my report on the Council agenda before you tonight. 

 

Discussion 

 

There is one item under the “Discussion” heading for tonight’s meeting and 

that is the proposed Articles of Incorporation for the Lakewood Recreation 

Authority.  

 

As I have found in my research, the Jordan Lake Trail project, as it relates 

to the Village of Lake Odessa, has been in the works since 2014. While 

there was initially discussion as to forming an Authority to oversee the 

construction of the trail (by the Village and Odessa Township), nothing 

ever appeared to materialize. 

 

As the Village was awarded a TAP Grant from MDOT – for an amount of 

over $936,000 – it can be easily seen that this is not a small project. These 

are funds that the Village of Lake Odessa is responsible for the 

administration of with regard to this trail project. Furthermore, Odessa 

Township has a $275,000 grant from the DNR for this project, along with 

$25,000 of their own funds.  

 

The above dollar amounts show why this Authority is needed. The Village 

is ultimately responsible for these funds. And for future funding of this 



2  

project – ongoing maintenance will be the responsibility of the Village, as 

the Act 51 recipient. If there are unforeseen cost overruns – due to 

unknown circumstances and unforeseen issues, who will be held 

accountable for providing funding for these? It will be you, the Village that 

will have to provide any/ all additional funds. It is important that the costs, 

and the future and best interests of the Village’s finances, be maintained 

and understood before a shovel hits the dirt. Not after. Once ground is 

broken, there is no turning back. 

 

An authority will provide a joint working committee that will bridge any 

gaps between the two municipalities involved and which are entrusted with 

taxpayer funds for this project. This working group will strive to keep this 

project focused and on track, always with the idea of current and future 

project costs at the forefront. While I believe this trail is a great thing for 

our communities, I also believe that maintaining a firm grasp on how it is 

run, how it is paid for, and developing a plan for the future with regard to 

maintenance is not only critically necessary, but of the utmost importance, 

to the future of the Village of Lake Odessa. I have worked in communities 

prior to starting here that faced deficit elimination programs from the State 

of Michigan – in which they were forced to cut staff and municipal services 

that the taxpayers were paying for – because municipal funds were spent 

without any foresight, without planning, and without good oversight from 

the decision makers that had to answer to the people ultimately responsible 

for the costs. I refuse to let this happen to the Village of Lake Odessa and I 

sincerely believe that this Authority will be in the best interest of all parties 

involved, both today and in the future. In short, I believe this trail is a very 

good thing for the community but it needs to be done properly – the 

establishment of an Authority is the only way in which to do this. 

 

Please note that these Articles of Incorporation are listed twice on this 

agenda – the first is in a discussion section and the second is under 

“New Business.” Please also note that this is simply a “First Reading 

and Introduction,” and that no action needs to be taken tonight on this 

item. 

 

 

 



3  

New Business 

 

Introduction and First Reading of Proposed Articles of Incorporation for the 

Lakewood Recreational Authority 

 

The Village and Odessa Township have been working together on this issue for 

quite some time. Basically, this Authority is proposed for the construction and 

future maintenance of the proposed Jordan Lake Trail.  

 

As this proposed trail utilizes MDOT funding, for which the Village is the sole 

responsible recipient of the grant funding, it is important that these funds are 

administered to by a body that is made up of representatives of the Village of Lake 

Odessa. An authority will assure the taxpayers and residents of the Village that 

funds that we are responsible for are being spent wisely, appropriately, and 

knowledgeably by the Village of Lake Odessa. Basically, an Authority will provide 

the necessary and direct oversight to this project throughout the entire process. 

 

Furthermore, this Authority will allow for future planning and funding for the 

necessary future maintenance of this trail. With multiple municipalities working 

towards this common goal, an Authority is a well-recognized and appropriate body 

to over see this project, which will initially cost over $1 million to construct and 

thousands of dollars in maintenance in the coming years.  

 

As this is an introduction and first reading only, no action is necessary by the 

Village Council. 

 

Proposed Resolution 2019-42: Approving the Purchase of a 2021 108SD 

Freightliner Chassis from D&K Truck Company and the Outfitting of this 

Equipment from Truck and Trailer Specialists 

 

I would encourage you to carefully read the report from DPW Supervisor Jesse 

Trout – in his report, he outlines the need for this purchase. Truck #6, which is 

both a plow truck and a dump truck, has outlived its useful life. It has already had 

numerous repairs made simply to keep it running and is on its last legs. Here are 

the issues that Jesse has found with Truck #6: 

 
• The frame rails that support the structure of the dump box are nearly cracked through on both 

sides. This is not the main frame of the truck chassis but is the main frame holding the dump box 

to the truck.  



4  

• The frame crossmember under the radiator that holds the hydraulic pump, recently broke 

completely free of the truck and had to be repaired.  

• The hydraulic cylinders that operate the underbelly scraper are leaking and need rebuilt. Also, 

several of the hydraulic lines are chafed, collapsing and needing replaced as they continually 

spring leaks. We have replaced a few already.  

• The rear end has been repaired twice and still continues to leak differential fluid.  

• In order to pass a DOT inspection, the Village spent over $6,000 on brakes a few years ago. It 

now stops but still pulls to the right when the brakes are heavily applied. We have adjusted them 

ourselves and had this issue looked at with no luck.  

• When turning tight corners, the front end clunks and pops which leads me to believe the front-end 

is in need of repair.  

• It burns antifreeze. We have scoured every inch of this truck looking for a leak and haven’t found 

one. Which leads me to believe it is burning it through the engine and out the exhaust. I spoke to 

Valley Truck which are one of the largest heavy truck repair stations in Michigan and their 

response was it has a leaking head gasket or bad head.  

• During the past two oil changes, we have found metal chunks and shavings in the bottom of the 

oil pan. I also spoke with Valley Truck about this issue and apparently it is a common problem 

with the DT466 engine in this truck. The typical culprit is timing gears and timing chain issues. 

With this and the coolant burning issue, they recommended not spending money on repairs as it 

would cost more than it’s worth. I inquired on cost of rebuilding or installing a remanufactured 

engine and the cost was estimated at $18,000. 
 

As Jesse states in his report, the cost to fix this piece of equipment would be 

substantially more than the truck is ultimately worth.  

 

While this purchase was on the Village’s “Capital Improvement Plan” for the 

2020-2021 FY, the lead time to receive this piece of equipment is greater than 300 

days. 

 

Please find attached to the resolution a chart showing where the funds – which are 

available right now – will ultimately come from. I strongly recommend that, in 

order for the Village to adequately maintain our streets into the future, this 

resolution be passed. 

 

Approval of the Village Council Meeting Schedule for 2020 

 

This is a relatively standard piece of business. All regular meetings are to be held 

on the third Monday of each month at 7:00 pm at the Page Memorial Building. 

 

Approval of Budget Amendments as Submitted 

 

 

 

 



5  

Items of Note 

 

◼ Please remember that overnight parking restrictions begin on 

November 1, 2019 and end on April 1, 2019. No parking is allowed on 

Village Streets between 2:00 am and 6:00 am between these dates. 

◼ I encourage you to read the reports from my staff as they have excellent 

information contained within them.  

◼ Village Offices will be closed on December 24th and 25th in observance of 

the Christmas holiday. Also, Village Offices will be closed on December 

31st and January 1st in observance of the New Years holiday. 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

Patrick Reagan, Village Manager  

Village of Lake Odessa 



NOVEMBER 2019 Monthly Council Report  
Thanksgiving brings families, friends, neighbors and communities together. On this 

Thanksgiving, we want to thank you for all your support throughout this year.  

The Lake Odessa Police Department responded to 39 Calls for Service for the month of November 2019; 

42 Traffic Stops were conducted;  41 Warnings Issued, 15 Citations Issued, 5 Arrest(s) were made, 2 

Misdemeanor Traffic Citation(s) Issued, 10 Parking Citations, 0 Use of Force Incidents, 0 Taser 

Deployments, 0 Reserve Hours,  82525 Miles 2012 Impala,  46514 Miles 2016 Tahoe.  

 

 



TRAINING: 

Officer Boot attended Standardized Field Sobriety Test refresher (SFST) and Advanced Roadside 

Impairment Driving Enforcement (ARIDE) training. ARIDE trained officers will receive an overview of 

the observable effects of drug impairment and/or alcohol drug combinations. Every member of the 

Lake Odessa Police Department has attended this training.  

 

Chief Backing and Officer Boot attended a child abuse training seminar and a Stop the Bleed 

course. Studies have shown that the help given by an immediate responder can often determine 

the difference between life and death, even before professional rescuers arrive. The course is 

designed to train individuals, both civilian and public safety personnel, on what to do as an 

immediate responder in a bleeding emergency and covers the ABCs of bleeding as a method to 

stop an active bleed. The course includes a class presentation and hands-on skills demonstration on 

tourniquet application, wound packing, and pressure application.  

Every member of the Lake Odessa Police Department has attended this training. Tourniquets are 

carried by each officer while on duty.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

In Michigan, registered sites collected 3,367.2lbs of medication.  Ionia County alone collected a total of 

106.8 lbs of unwanted medication. Community medication take back events provide a safe process for 

disposing of unused medications while protecting our communities, children and environment. Thank 

you to everyone who participated in this initiative. 

 

 

 

We send our deepest condolences to the Detroit Police Department for the loss of one of their officers 

who was shot and killed in the line of duty on November 20, 2019. The Officer was a 16-year veteran 

of the Detroit Police Department. A second officer was also shot and is recovering in the hospital. Our 

thoughts are with the family, friends and community during this difficult time.  



Public Relations: 

“Oh the Who-manity” Thank you to the Village of Sunfield who invited the Lake Odessa Police 

Department to participate in their 2nd annual Christmas Village event.  

 

 

  

 



Community Interactions: 

The departments Facebook page is growing and we have seen an increase in positive feedback from 

the public. We have been promoting content we find relevant to our community by including visuals, 

infographics, and photos. As a result, we have seen a significant increase in engagement. We use the 

department Facebook page to not only disseminate information but also find a common ground with 

our community to show them we are relatable and responsive to their needs.  

The Lady Vikings Volleyball team earned their way to State Finals held in Battle Creek on November 

23, 2019. We assisted the team members with a police escort through our community so they could 

be sent off to Battle Creek with an outpouring of support prior to their match.  

 

 

 

 



Community Support: 
 
The Lake Odessa Police Department conducts foot patrols, business and residential checks for our 
community members. Perhaps the oldest tradition in policing that still holds a tremendous amount of 
value to this day. I included this email but redacted the name and email address I received from a 
citizen that I wanted to share with you all.  
 
 
Sent: Wednesday, December 4, 2019 11:34 PM 
To: Kendra Backing <kbacking@lakeodessa.org> 
Subject: Just a thought 
 
It’s 11:30 at night and I was smoking a cigarette on my stairs (I know I should quit) and I saw something 
that I’ve seen several times, Officer Eric was going door to door checking to make sure the businesses 
were secure. I absolutely LOVE that about him. I know your officers are trained well and I LOVE the fact 
they truly have community in mind. I cannot express how impressed I am. At first I thought it might have 
been someone up to no good but quite quickly I realized it was the other way around.  
 
I just wanted to let you know that as someone who used to be on the “other side of the fence” I 
absolutely appreciate the work you all do. You all  are always welcomed in my home.  
 
Thank you for being one of the most valuable aspects of living in this beautiful town! 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:kbacking@lakeodessa.org


Department of Public Works 

 November 14th 2019 to December 6th 2019 

Council Report 

Parks & Beach 

We purchased roofing materials for the park pavilion and hope to find a window of decent weather this winter for 

the project. If not, we will reroof the pavilion in the spring. We rented a stump grinder and ground the numerous 

stumps that were spread throughout the park. 

Streets 

The guys installed fiberglass markers on the parking bump outs downtown. We hope this will assist in our plowing 

efforts. We installed new lights from a DDA purchase on the downtown trees, ran the garland lighting on the street 

lamp poles and changed the fall banners to winter banners. With the rented stump grinder, we ground every 

stump we could find in the right of way from previous tree removals. With the park stumps combined, we ground 

35 large stumps in total. We have removed the debris and will topsoil and restore the areas in the spring. After 

completing the final leaf collection, we swept each street throughout the Village. 

Water 

Things were fairly slow in water this month, which is not a bad thing! We did have some well communication 

issues caused by Tri County power failures overnight on the 27th of November. Water turn off for non-payment 

came and went without issue. We insulated the controls enclosure underneath tower #2 to prevent freezing issues 

that have been experienced in the past. We are currently installing battery backups at both water towers to 

prevent any interruption to water controls during a long-term power outage. When everything is complete, we 

should be able to withstand a power outage that extends indefinitely. 

DPW 

We made one more unscheduled brush collection to clean up the few piles scattered through the Village. Compost 

bags are still being picked up weekly. We completed the leaf collection and actually had decent enough weather 

this year to sweep each street. With cold temperatures and moisture in the leaves, the leaf piles freeze and the 

debris screens inside the vac truck freeze shut, not allowing the vacuum to work. This prevents us from using the 

vac for leaf collection once freezing temps arrive. This, combined with the high cost of operating the machine and 

need to complete the project is why I establish a final leaf collection by vac date. The completion date I strive for is 

always the day before Thanksgiving as this tends to historically be the breaking point between timing and 

adequate conditions. Any leaves needing collected after completion will need to be bagged. I am explaining the 

reasoning as I have had a few residents inquire. 

Purchase Recommendation  

I am recommending purchasing a 2021 108SD Freightliner from D&K Truck Company for a cost of $78,992.00  

I recommend utilizing Truck & Trailer Specialties to install all equipment on 2021 108SD Freightliner for a cost of 

$83,795.00 



Additional Comments 

When I began working at the Village, I quickly noticed that for a small municipality, the Village had a good selection 

of equipment for completing the necessary daily tasks. This is uncommon for a small municipality. I can tell you 

from experience that this leads to a struggle more often than not. Though the Village had a good selection of 

equipment, I soon noticed the poor condition of it causing that known struggle to complete daily functions. I went 

to work inventorying equipment, estimating repair versus replacement costs, the need for each individual piece of 

equipment, what it was utilized for and if we could downsize or needed to expand. I began totaling previous repair 

costs and quickly realized several pieces of equipment were either costing more to keep functioning than they 

were worth or had been completely neglected and no repairs had been done at all. Pearl and I developed a 

spreadsheet to track repair costs, mileage, hours, useful service life and a replacement schedule. We have all made 

some tremendous strides toward updating equipment over the past few years. The 1999 International dump truck 

is the next on the list to be replaced. The plan has been to budget for this purchase during the 20/21 fiscal year. 

The rapidly deteriorating condition of this piece of equipment and length of build time for a new truck has 

hastened this purchase. This truck was originally purchased as a used piece of equipment that had belonged to a 

county road commission and had already been worked hard. By only totaling large expenses, since owning this 

dump truck, the Village has spent upwards of $20,000 keeping it in service. This doesn’t include all of the smaller 

expenses that I’m unaware of. As following, I would like to share with you some of the known issues this truck 

currently has. 

: The frame rails that support the structure of the dump box are nearly cracked through on both sides. 

This is not the main frame of the truck chassis but is the main frame holding the dump box to the 

truck. 

: The frame crossmember under the radiator that holds the hydraulic pump, recently broke 

completely free of the truck and had to be repaired. 

: The hydraulic cylinders that operate the underbelly scraper are leaking and need rebuilt. Also, 

several of the hydraulic lines are chafed, collapsing and needing replaced as they continually spring 

leaks. We have replaced a few already. 

: The rear end has been repaired twice and still continues to leak differential fluid. 

: In order to pass a DOT inspection, the Village spent over $6,000 on brakes a few years ago. It now 

stops but still pulls to the right when the brakes are heavily applied. We have adjusted them ourselves 

and had this issue looked at with no luck. 

: When turning tight corners, the front end clunks and pops which leads me to believe the front-end is 

in need of repair. 

: It burns antifreeze. We have scoured every inch of this truck looking for a leak and haven’t found 

one. Which leads me to believe it is burning it through the engine and out the exhaust. I spoke to 

Valley Truck which are one of the largest heavy truck repair stations in Michigan and their response 

was it has a leaking head gasket or bad head. 



: During the past two oil changes, we have found metal chunks and shavings in the bottom of the oil 

pan. I also spoke with Valley Truck about this issue and apparently it is a common problem with the 

DT466 engine in this truck. The typical culprit is timing gears and timing chain issues. With this and the 

coolant burning issue, they recommended not spending money on repairs as it would cost more than 

it’s worth. I inquired on cost of rebuilding or installing a remanufactured engine and the cost was 

estimated at $18,000. 

 

To make all of these repairs would cost a substantial amount more than the truck is worth. 

This dump truck is heavily relied upon throughout the year. During the winter, it is our only heavy truck as the 

newer International is tied up for nearly 6 months with a salt box full of salt on it. We haul the majority of the snow 

from downtown with this truck. If we need to haul asphalt, sand or gravel, this is the truck we have to use. If we 

have a water main break or service line repair, this is the truck we have to use. If something happened to the 

newer truck being used to plow and salt the streets, this truck will not do that job. The controls will not operate 

the salt spreader and the underbelly scraper loses function after being in the cold for extended periods of time. 

This is largely due to collapsing hydraulic hoses, leaking hydraulic cylinders and the age of the equipment. We add 

weight to the dump box but the truck is too short and still too light to be used heavily as a plow truck. During the 

few times I have attempted to plow with this truck, I noticed the rear end sliding around due to it being too short 

and light. When attempting to use the front plow on heavily drifted roads, the front-end pushes toward the 

centerline and the truck eventually loses traction. In short, if something happened to our main plow truck during a 

snow event, we would be scrambling to provide even the barest of services. I don’t know what we would if we 

didn’t have the truck for all of the previously mentioned functions. 

I have reached out to 3 different truck dealers and received pricing. I utilized the winning dealerships of the MiDeal 

contract and also the dealer you purchased the International from in December 2016. If you’re unfamiliar with 

MiDeal, it is State contracted pricing that was bid on by numerous vendors and awarded to the low bidder. I 

utilized D&K as the winning Freightliner dealer and Tri County as the winning International dealer. All 3 trucks are 

built exactly the same as each other so there is an apple to apples comparison. Truck & Trailer was the sole MiDeal 

awarded equipment up fitter that covers our service area. They are the only up fitter I have known to install 

equipment on large municipal plow trucks on the entire west side of the State. They installed the equipment on 

the 2017 International for you. 

Freightliner is currently processing builds with an estimated delivery of late February early March 2020. Truck & 

Trailer is currently running 300+ days on build completions. If both work orders were placed today, the completed 

truck would not be in our possession until an estimated November 2020 time frame. With this issue and the 

deteriorating condition of our dump truck, I would strongly suggest a truck be ordered as soon as possible.  

I know this was a long-winded explanation and I thank you for staying with me. This is a large purchase and I want 

you to have all the facts I can provide. If purchased, a new truck should provide a minimum 12 to 15 years of 

service to us before any major maintenance begins. It will become the main snow/ice control truck and the 2017 

International will take place of the 1999 International. Currently, it takes an average of 8 hours to plow the Village 

once. At times, we need to plow multiple times during a snow event to keep the streets clear. If purchased, I plan 

to begin plowing in tandem with both trucks and expediting time spent clearing the streets.  

The current estimated value of the 1999 International is between $15,000 & $25,000. 



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 1/3Page: 12/09/2019 10:59 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 11/01/2019 - 11/30/2019

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

Bank ARTS 

10.33 KAREN BANKS3095ARTS11/08/2019
108.60 VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA - GENERAL3096ARTS11/21/2019
49.65 VERIZON WIRELESS3097ARTS11/21/2019

ARTS TOTALS:

168.58 Total of 3 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
168.58 Total of 3 Checks:

Bank GEN 1447 GENERAL FUND

33.99 CALEDONIA FARMERS ELEVATOR40731GEN11/05/2019
6.00 NYE UNIFORM40732GEN11/05/2019

2,500.00 TREES 'N' SCAPES, INC.40733GEN11/05/2019
147.36 VERIZON WIRELESS40734GEN11/05/2019
25.79 VERN'S REPAIR & SPORT40735GEN11/05/2019

765.66 FREDRICKSON SUPPLY CO LLC40736GEN11/06/2019
2,280.81 CONSUMERS ENERGY40737GEN11/06/2019

863.21 WEX BANK40738GEN11/06/2019
247.88 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40739GEN11/08/2019
40.66 CONSUMERS ENERGY40740GEN11/08/2019
56.62 NAPA OF IONIA40741GEN11/08/2019
44.37 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40742GEN11/18/2019

715.35 CONSUMERS ENERGY40743GEN11/18/2019
13,200.00 GAMETIME40744GEN11/18/2019

35.00 SCOTT HUBBERT40745GEN11/18/2019
512.92 JIM'S SERVICE40746GEN11/18/2019

1,086.21 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL40747GEN11/18/2019
2,202.22 MENARDS-IONIA40748GEN11/18/2019

462.00 MILLER, JOHNSON, SNELL & CUMMISKEY40749GEN11/18/2019
424.07 NAPA OF IONIA40750GEN11/18/2019
486.16 STATE CHEMICAL SOLUTIONS40751GEN11/18/2019
59.50 JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SOLUTIONS40752GEN11/18/2019

100.00 WEST MICHIGAN CRIMINAL JUSTICE 40753GEN11/18/2019
91.25 WOW!  BUSINESS40754GEN11/18/2019
67.41 WOW!  BUSINESS40755GEN11/18/2019
20.16 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40756GEN11/21/2019

2,252.15 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN40757GEN11/21/2019
56.52 CARDMEMBER SERVICE40758GEN11/21/2019
69.96 FAMILY FARM & HOME - CHARLOTTE40759GEN11/21/2019

598.43 THE SBAM PLAN40760GEN11/21/2019
271.58 VERIZON WIRELESS40761GEN11/21/2019

12,407.18 LAKE ODESSA DDA40762GEN11/25/2019
64.42 LAKEWOOD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY40763GEN11/25/2019

115.00 MI ASSOC OF CHIEFS OF POLICE40764GEN11/25/2019
44.31 LAKE ODESSA PARTS PLUS40765GEN11/25/2019
64.00 SPECTRUM HEALTH PENNOCK40766GEN11/25/2019

125.70 WOW!  BUSINESS40767GEN11/25/2019

GEN TOTALS:

42,543.85 Total of 37 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
42,543.85 Total of 37 Checks:

Bank HWY 6659 GENERAL HWY



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 2/3Page: 12/09/2019 10:59 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 11/01/2019 - 11/30/2019

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

135.00 GREAT LAKES GRAVEL & SAND1949HWY11/08/2019
4,959.58 BB&T GOVERNMENTAL FINANCE 1950HWY11/21/2019

87.55 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN1951HWY11/21/2019
68.79 THE SBAM PLAN1952HWY11/21/2019

5,560.18 LAKE ODESSA DDA1953HWY11/25/2019

HWY TOTALS:

10,811.10 Total of 5 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
10,811.10 Total of 5 Checks:

Bank LOC 6646 LOCAL STREETS

1,699.12 DETROIT SALT2209LOC11/05/2019
158.00 DORNBOS SIGN, INC.2210LOC11/05/2019

3,280.00 M & M OUTDOOR SERVICES2211LOC11/05/2019
26.51 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2212LOC11/21/2019

1,000.00 DORNBOS SIGN, INC.2213LOC11/21/2019
10.05 THE SBAM PLAN2214LOC11/21/2019

560.00 SUNBELT RENTALS2215LOC11/25/2019

LOC TOTALS:

6,733.68 Total of 7 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
6,733.68 Total of 7 Checks:

Bank MAJ 6633 MAJOR STREETS

1,699.13 DETROIT SALT2276MAJ11/05/2019
2,670.00 M & M OUTDOOR SERVICES2277MAJ11/05/2019
7,176.10 PK CONTRACTING2278MAJ11/18/2019

45.11 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2279MAJ11/21/2019
549.05 DORNBOS SIGN, INC.2280MAJ11/21/2019
10.20 THE SBAM PLAN2281MAJ11/21/2019

560.00 SUNBELT RENTALS2282MAJ11/25/2019

MAJ TOTALS:

12,709.59 Total of 7 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
12,709.59 Total of 7 Checks:

Bank WATER 6620 WATER

768.07 BADGER METER 4751WATER11/05/2019
34.59 VERIZON WIRELESS4752WATER11/05/2019

313.66 WEX BANK4753WATER11/06/2019
146.58 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.4754WATER11/08/2019
150.00 H2O COMPLIANCE SERVICES INC.4755WATER11/08/2019
504.95 NAPA OF IONIA4756WATER11/08/2019
110.43 QUILL CORPORATION4757WATER11/08/2019
616.62 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.4758WATER11/18/2019
75.02 AT&T4759WATER11/18/2019

1,012.12 CONSUMERS ENERGY4760WATER11/18/2019
44.00 CITY OF IONIA4761WATER11/18/2019

300.00 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE4762WATER11/18/2019
138.44 NAPA OF IONIA4763WATER11/18/2019

1,339.40 STATE OF MICHIGAN4764WATER11/18/2019
2,125.53 BB&T GOVERNMENTAL FINANCE 4765WATER11/21/2019



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 3/3Page: 12/09/2019 10:59 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 11/01/2019 - 11/30/2019

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

3,391.99 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN4766WATER11/21/2019
292.37 THE SBAM PLAN4767WATER11/21/2019
149.67 VERIZON WIRELESS4768WATER11/21/2019
196.72 CRYSTAL FLASH4769WATER11/25/2019
62.85 WOW!  BUSINESS4770WATER11/25/2019

WATER TOTALS:

11,773.01 Total of 20 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
11,773.01 Total of 20 Checks:

REPORT TOTALS:

84,739.81 Total of 79 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
84,739.81 Total of 79 Checks:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 1/8Page:12/09/2019 10:05 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues

85.69 114,423.49 799,710.00 799,710.00 685,286.51 812,740.15 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

85.69 114,423.49 799,710.00 799,710.00 685,286.51 812,740.15 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
87.80 8,423.71 69,050.00 69,050.00 60,626.29 64,917.62 GOVERNING BODY101
54.33 22,946.64 50,240.00 50,240.00 27,293.36 17,838.84 MANAGERS172
28.76 20,701.29 29,060.00 29,060.00 8,358.71 23,347.99 PAGE MEMORIAL BUILDING265
48.74 182,286.29 355,640.00 355,640.00 173,353.71 207,291.62 POLICE301
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FIRE336

47.81 111,088.44 212,844.45 203,360.00 101,756.01 220,171.67 PUBLIC WORKS441
54.68 17,102.71 37,740.00 37,740.00 20,637.29 32,475.89 PUBLIC UTILITIES-STREET LIGHTING448
95.53 151.82 3,400.00 3,400.00 3,248.18 4,133.78 WATER/SEWER536
68.49 2,416.68 7,670.00 7,670.00 5,253.32 7,010.46 ZONING722
31.80 3,751.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 1,749.00 4,612.31 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT728
84.80 5,783.87 38,050.00 38,050.00 32,266.13 27,956.06 PARKS AND RECREATION751
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LIBRARY790
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 999

53.70 374,652.45 809,194.45 799,710.00 434,542.00 609,756.24 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

2,643.74 (260,228.96)(9,484.45)0.00 250,744.51 202,983.91 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

53.70 374,652.45 809,194.45 799,710.00 434,542.00 609,756.24 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
85.69 114,423.49 799,710.00 799,710.00 685,286.51 812,740.15 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 2/8Page:12/09/2019 10:05 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND
Revenues

79.22 38,905.99 187,190.00 182,060.00 148,284.01 173,904.95 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

79.22 38,905.99 187,190.00 182,060.00 148,284.01 173,904.95 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
89.24 20,368.12 189,230.00 184,100.00 168,861.88 137,977.73 STREET DEPT (ACT 51)449
72.90 1,151.68 4,250.00 4,250.00 3,098.32 3,893.87 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450
20.70 2,941.90 3,710.00 3,710.00 768.10 7,584.94 SNOW REMOVAL869

87.59 24,461.70 197,190.00 192,060.00 172,728.30 149,456.54 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

244.44 14,444.29 (10,000.00)(10,000.00)(24,444.29)24,448.41 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

87.59 24,461.70 197,190.00 192,060.00 172,728.30 149,456.54 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
79.22 38,905.99 187,190.00 182,060.00 148,284.01 173,904.95 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 3/8Page:12/09/2019 10:05 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND
Revenues

59.55 26,289.95 65,000.00 65,000.00 38,710.05 160,221.97 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

59.55 26,289.95 65,000.00 65,000.00 38,710.05 160,221.97 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
45.16 17,137.32 31,250.00 31,250.00 14,112.68 25,063.18 STREET DEPT (ACT 51)449
75.68 1,593.01 6,550.00 6,550.00 4,956.99 6,229.80 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450
13.08 3,224.65 3,710.00 3,710.00 485.35 3,068.89 SNOW REMOVAL869

47.11 21,954.98 41,510.00 41,510.00 19,555.02 34,361.87 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

81.55 4,334.97 23,490.00 23,490.00 19,155.03 125,860.10 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

47.11 21,954.98 41,510.00 41,510.00 19,555.02 34,361.87 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
59.55 26,289.95 65,000.00 65,000.00 38,710.05 160,221.97 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 4/8Page:12/09/2019 10:05 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 204 - GENERAL HWY
Revenues

94.76 11,994.56 228,900.00 228,900.00 216,905.44 216,090.74 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

94.76 11,994.56 228,900.00 228,900.00 216,905.44 216,090.74 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL000

89.31 16,254.46 152,100.00 152,100.00 135,845.54 128,589.73 HIGHWAYS, STREETS (NOT ACT 51)446
75.23 6,067.69 24,500.00 24,500.00 18,432.31 23,082.84 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450

87.36 22,322.15 176,600.00 176,600.00 154,277.85 151,672.57 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

119.75 (10,327.59)52,300.00 52,300.00 62,627.59 64,418.17 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

87.36 22,322.15 176,600.00 176,600.00 154,277.85 151,672.57 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
94.76 11,994.56 228,900.00 228,900.00 216,905.44 216,090.74 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 204 - GENERAL HWY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 5/8Page:12/09/2019 10:05 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues

58.46 13,093.92 31,525.00 31,525.00 18,431.08 30,823.22 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

58.46 13,093.92 31,525.00 31,525.00 18,431.08 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 DDA275

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

359.06 (6,994.54)2,700.00 2,700.00 9,694.54 22,009.43 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
58.46 13,093.92 31,525.00 31,525.00 18,431.08 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 6/8Page:12/09/2019 10:05 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 290 - ARTS
Revenues

106.17 (584.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,056.00 24,069.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

106.17 (584.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,056.00 24,069.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
112.30 (1,165.23)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,637.23 15,991.60 ARTS752

112.30 (1,165.23)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,637.23 15,991.60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 581.23 0.00 0.00 (581.23)8,077.40 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

112.30 (1,165.23)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,637.23 15,991.60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
106.17 (584.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,056.00 24,069.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 290 - ARTS:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 7/8Page:12/09/2019 10:05 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 291 - CAR SHOW
Revenues

113.74 (412.99)3,005.00 3,005.00 3,417.99 3,223.50 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

113.74 (412.99)3,005.00 3,005.00 3,417.99 3,223.50 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
134.36 (1,032.40)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,037.40 3,384.82 CAR SHOW753

134.36 (1,032.40)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,037.40 3,384.82 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 619.41 0.00 0.00 (619.41)(161.32)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

134.36 (1,032.40)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,037.40 3,384.82 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
113.74 (412.99)3,005.00 3,005.00 3,417.99 3,223.50 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 291 - CAR SHOW:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 8/8Page:12/09/2019 10:05 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Revenues

80.80 183,981.30 958,291.45 947,675.00 774,310.15 2,849,043.07 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

80.80 183,981.30 958,291.45 947,675.00 774,310.15 2,849,043.07 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
73.25 235,111.41 878,941.89 822,105.00 643,830.48 825,888.02 WATER/SEWER536

73.25 235,111.41 878,941.89 822,105.00 643,830.48 825,888.02 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

164.44 (51,130.11)79,349.56 125,570.00 130,479.67 2,023,155.05 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

73.25 235,111.41 878,941.89 822,105.00 643,830.48 825,888.02 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
80.80 183,981.30 958,291.45 947,675.00 774,310.15 2,849,043.07 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:

323.12 (308,701.30)138,355.11 194,060.00 447,056.41 2,470,791.15 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

67.53 696,393.52 2,144,738.34 2,073,287.00 1,448,344.82 1,799,325.45 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
83.02 387,692.22 2,283,093.45 2,267,347.00 1,895,401.23 4,270,116.60 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS



12/10/19 

Dickinson Wright Draft 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

LAKEWOOD RECREATIONAL AUTHORITY 

 

These Articles of Incorporation are adopted by the incorporating municipalities to create an 

Authority under Act 321 of the Public Acts of Michigan 2000, as amended (“Act 321”).  

 

ARTICLE I 

NAME 

 

The name of this Authority is the Lakewood Recreational Authority. 

 

ARTICLE II 

DEFINITIONS 

 

Section 1. Definitions from Act 321. The terms "Articles," "Authority," "Board," "Participating 

Municipality," "Park," "Recreational Purposes," and "Territory of the Authority" as used in these 

Articles shall have the same definitions as contained in Section 3 of Act 321. 

 

Section 2. Other Terms. Other terms shall have such meaning as may be specified in Act 321 in 

the various provisions of these Articles of Incorporation, and the meanings customarily ascribed 

to them, considering the context and subject matter of these Articles of Incorporation. The 

definitions in Act 321 shall control over the definitions in the Articles of Incorporation, which 

shall control over customary meanings. 

 

ARTICLE III 

PARTICIPATING MUNICIPALITIES 

 

The participating and creating municipalities of the Authority are the Township of Odessa, a 

Michigan municipal corporation, and the Village of Lake Odessa, a Michigan municipal 

corporation, each of which are hereby designated and referred to in these Articles as the 

“Participating Municipalities.”  

 

ARTICLE IV 

TERRITORY OF THE AUTHORITY 

 

The Territory of the Authority shall include all the property – as designated by the Participating 

Municipalities – situated within the corporate boundaries of all the Participating Municipalities.  

 

ARTICLE V 

PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this Authority is the acquisition, construction, operation, maintenance, and/or 

improvement of:  



2 

 

 

1. Parks, as defined in Act 321, dedicated to the public and including trails and pathways; and 

 

2. Such other facilities, as are authorized by Section 5 of Act 321, as determined by the Board 

following consultation with the legislative bodies of each of the Participating Municipalities. 

Existing recreational facilities and public rights-of-way under the control and ownership of a 

Participating Municipality shall remain the property of said Participating Municipality unless 

they are acquired by the Board as authorized by Act 321. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

POWERS OF AUTHORITY 

 

The Authority shall possess all the powers specified in Act 321, subject to the limitations of 

authority as provided by law and/or limitations as specified in these Articles of Incorporation, 

including the power to: 

 

1. Acquire and hold, by purchase, lease with or without option to purchase, grant, gift, devise, 

land contract, installment purchase contract, bequest, or other legal means, real and personal 

property inside or outside the Territory of the Authority. The property may include 

franchises, easements, or rights of way on, under or above any property. The Authority may 

pay for the property, or pledge for the payment of the property, from revenue of the 

Authority. 

 

2. Apply for and accept grants or contributions from individuals, the federal government or any 

of its agencies, this state, a municipality, or other public or private agencies to be used for 

any of the purposes of the Authority. 

 

3. Hire full-time or part-time employees and retain professional services. 

 

4. Provide for the maintenance of all of the real and personal property of the Authority. 

 

5. Assess and collect fees for services provided by and expenses incurred by the Authority. 

 

6. Receive revenue as appropriated by the legislature of this state or a Participating 

Municipality. 

 

7. Enter into contracts incidental to or necessary for the accomplishment of the purposes of the 

Authority. 

 



3 

 

ARTICLE VII 

TERM 

 

The Authority shall continue in existence perpetually or until dissolved pursuant to Article XVII 

hereof.  

 

ARTICLE VIII 

FISCAL YEAR 

 

The fiscal year of the Authority shall commence on the first day of April in each year and shall 

end on the last day of March of the subsequent year. 

 

ARTICLE IX 

GOVERNING BOARD 

 

Section 1. Board. The Authority shall be directed and governed by a five-member Board, known 

as the "Lakewood Recreational Authority Board," hereinafter sometimes referred to as the 

"Board."  

 

Section 2. Membership and Qualification of Board. 

 

A. Composition. The Board shall be composed of five  members, including: 

 

1) Two members selected by the governing body of each Participating Municipality, each of 

whom shall be a registered voter and elected official or Township/Village 

Manager/Administrator of said Participating Municipality; and 

 

2) One at-large member selected jointly by the remaining Board members, who shall be a 

registered voter of one of the Participating Municipalities and shall not be an elected 

official or employee of a Participating Municipality. 

 

B. Term. The term of each Board member shall be three (3) years, beginning on the first day of 

April next following his or her respective appointment; except that of the members first 

appointed, an equal number of the members selected by each Participating Municipality, as 

near as is practicable, shall be appointed for a term of 1 year, 2 years, and 3 years, and the 

at-large member shall be appointed for a term of 3 years. The fourth member selected by one 

of the Participating Municipalities shall be appointed for a term of 2 years. 

 

Section 3. Oath of Office. Each member of the Board shall qualify by taking the constitutional 

oath of office and filing it with the clerk of his or her respective Participating Municipality, or in 

the case of the member selected jointly by the Board, with the Township of Odessa Clerk. 

 



4 

 

Section 4. First Board; Organization Meeting, Subsequent Board Members.  

 

A. Selection of First Board. The members of the first Board shall be selected within forty-five 

(45) days after the effective date of the incorporation of the Authority. 

 

B. Organizational Meeting. 

 

1. Within sixty (60) days after the effective date of incorporation of the Authority, the 

members of the first Authority Board shall qualify by taking the constitutional oath of 

office and shall meet for the purpose of organization. At such organizational meeting, the 

Board shall select a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary and Treasurer, and such 

other officers as it may deem appropriate. 

 

2. The Odessa Township Clerk and the Odessa Township Treasurer, who shall not be 

members of the Board, unless appointed, shall initially act and assume the authority and 

responsibilities of the Secretary and Treasurer of the Authority, respectively. At the 

organizational meeting, the Board shall confirm by vote that the Odessa Township Clerk 

and the Odessa Township Treasurer shall serve as the first Secretary and Treasurer of the 

Authority, respectively. 

 

3. All such officers shall serve until the organizational meeting of the following year, which 

shall be held each year in April, or until their respective successors shall be selected and 

qualify. 

 

4. No appointment to the Authority and no selection of an officer shall be deemed to be 

invalid because it was not made within the times or at the time specified in these Articles. 

 

Section 5. Removal of Board Members. A Board member appointed by a Participating 

Municipality may be removed from the Board by the appointing Participating Municipality for 

good cause after a public hearing. The at-large member selected by the Board may be removed 

by the Board for good cause after a public hearing.  Vacancies shall be filled in the same manner 

as the original appointment for the unexpired term. 

 

ARTICLE X 

COMPENSATION 

 

Pursuant to the requirements of Act 321, members of the Board shall not be compensated by the 

Authority for their service. Each member of the Board shall, however, be entitled to 

reimbursement for all reasonable expenditures made by him or her in carrying out official duties 

as may be approved by the Board and to the extent authorized by the budget for the Authority for 

each fiscal year. 

 



5 

 

ARTICLE XI 

VACANCIES 

 

A vacancy occurs on the Board on the happening of any events set forth in MCL 201.3. In the 

event of a vacancy on the Board, the vacancy shall be filled as follows: 

 

1. The governing body of the Participating Municipality selecting such representative shall fill 

the vacancy as expeditiously as possible and in no event to exceed ninety (90) days from the 

date such vacancy occurs.   

 

2. In the event of a vacancy on the Board of the at-large position, the Board shall fill the 

vacancy within the same time period as set forth in paragraph 1 of this Article. 

 

3. In the case of the temporary absence or disability of any officer, the Board may appoint a 

member, who is currently appointed and serving, temporarily to act in his or her stead for a 

period not to exceed 180 days; except that in the event of the temporary absence or disability 

of the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson shall so act.  

 

4. In the event a member who was appointed by a Participating Municipality becomes ineligible 

to serve on the Board by virtue of no longer holding elective township/village office or no 

longer being employed as Village/Township manager/administrator, the vacancy shall be 

filled by the Participating Municipality who selected such representative within the same 

time period as set forth in paragraph 1 of this Article. 

 

ARTICLE XII 

MEETINGS 

 

Section 1. Scheduling. The Board shall meet at least quarterly and shall annually establish a 

regular meeting schedule, which shall be posted at the offices of the Participating Municipalities 

in similar form and within similar times as required by law for governmental meeting schedules. 

 

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chairperson or 

by any two (2) Board members.  

 

Section 3. Public Notice. Public notice of the time, date, and place of each meeting of the Board 

shall be given in the manner required by the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, MCL 15.261- 

15.275.  

 

Section 4. Quorum; Voting. A majority of the full membership of the Board shall constitute a 

quorum, which shall be required in order to conduct a meeting of the Board. . The Board shall act by 

motion or resolution. A vote of the members of the Board who are present at any meeting, at 

which a quorum is present, shall be sufficient for passage of any motion or resolution. However, 

any decision regarding the annual budget, capital expenditures, projected revenues, projected 



6 

 

expenditures, and budget amendments must be supported by a vote of the majority of the total 

membership of the Board.  

 

Section 5. Rules; Procedures. The Board may adopt rules or bylaws governing its procedures 

which are not in conflict with the terms of any statute of the State of Michigan or of these 

Articles of Incorporation. 

 

Section 6. Minutes. Written minutes of all Board meetings shall be kept in compliance with 

applicable provisions of the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, MCL 15.261-15.275. Copies of 

minutes shall be prepared within the time period established by the Open Meetings Act and sent 

to all Board members and the clerks of the Participating Municipalities as soon as reasonably 

possible following their preparation.  

 

Section 7. Freedom of Information Act. A writing prepared, owned, or used by the Authority 

in the performance of an official function shall be made available in compliance with the 

Freedom of Information Act, 1976 PA 442, MCL 15.231-15.246.  

 

ARTICLE XIII 

DUTIES OF BOARD AND OFFICERS 

 

Section 1. Chairperson. The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected annually by the Board 

members and shall be the presiding officer of the Board, and shall be permitted, with the consent 

of the Board, to appoint committees of the Board as necessary. Except as herein otherwise 

provided, the Chairperson and Board members shall not have any executive or administrative 

functions other than as a member of the Board. 

 

Section 2. Vice Chairperson. The Vice Chairperson of the Board shall be elected annually by 

the Board members. In the absence of disability of the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson shall 

perform the duties of the Chairperson.  

 

Section 3. Secretary. The Secretary of the Board shall be elected annually by the Board 

members and shall be the recording officer for the Board. If a person other than the Odessa 

Township Clerk is to serve as Secretary, the Board shall establish qualifications for such office, 

such as the capability of carrying out the duties of office, including, without limitation, 

compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, and other state laws relating to recordkeeping 

and management. 

 

Section 4. Treasurer. The Treasurer of the Board shall be elected annually by the Board 

members and shall be the custodian of the funds of the Authority and shall give to it a bond 

conditioned upon the faithful performance of the duties of his or her office. All money shall be 

deposited in a financial institution or financial institutions, to be designated by the Board, and all 

checks or other forms of withdrawal therefrom shall be signed by two (2) persons, which persons 

shall be the Secretary and the Treasurer, or their respective designees, as approved by the Board. 



7 

 

All authorized signatories shall give a bond conditioned upon the faithful performance of the 

prescribed duties, unless duties are performed by the Odessa Township Clerk and Odessa 

Township Treasurer. The Authority shall pay the cost of the bonds. If a person other than the 

Odessa Township Treasurer is to serve as Treasurer, the Board shall establish qualifications for 

such office, such as the capability of carrying out the duties of office, including the capability of 

carrying out the duties of office as provided by law and these Articles of Incorporation.  

 

ARTICLE XIV 

REVENUES, FINANCING, AND BUDGETING 

 

Section 1. Power to Raise Revenue. The Authority shall have the power to raise revenue in the 

manner authorized by Act 321 and as further described in these articles. 

 

Section 2. Financing the Authority.  

 

A. Contributions from Each Participating Municipality. The Participating Municipalities shall 

contribute to financing the Authority in accordance with a contract adopted between the 

Authority and each Participating Municipality.  

 

B. Tax Levy. 

 

1) As an alternative to the financial contribution formula in Section 2(a) of this Article XIV, 

the Authority may levy a tax on all taxable property within the Territory of the Authority 

as authorized by Section 11 of Act 321 (as approved by voters). For so long as the 

Authority is funded by a levy as authorized by Section 11 of Act 321, the imposition of 

such a levy shall preclude the Authority from requiring any further financial contributions 

from each Participating Municipality. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed as 

preventing a Participating Municipality or non-participating organization, by action of its 

governing body, from providing additional contributions to the Authority, for either a 

general or a specific use. 

 

2) Prior to making a final determination to levy a tax, as provided above, the Board shall 

annually obtain approval of the proposed budget by a majority of the governing bodies of 

the Participating Municipalities. 

 

Section 3. Budget Process. The Board shall prepare a proposed annual operating and capital 

budget reflecting the projected revenues and projected expenditures of the Authority for the next 

fiscal year beginning April 1. The Board shall adopt the proposed budget and appropriations act 

by a majority vote of the members of the Board in such a manner as to assure submission of the 

adopted tentative budget to the Participating Municipalities no later than January 2 of each year. 

After the approval of the proposed budget by a majority of the governing bodies of the 

Participating Municipalities, the Board shall give final approval to the Authority budget for the 



8 

 

next fiscal year. The budget may be amended from time to time upon approval by a majority of 

the governing bodies of the Participating Municipalities. 

 

Section 4. Accounting and Budgeting Practices. The accounting and budgeting practices of the 

Authority shall conform with the standard accounting practices, Section 27 of Act 321, the 

Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, Act 2, Public Acts of Michigan, 1968, as amended, and 

all other applicable provisions of law. 

 

ARTICLE XV 

AUDIT 

 

The Board shall obtain an annual audit of the Authority, in accordance with the requirements of 

Section 27 of Act 321, and shall furnish a copy to each Participating Municipality.  The books 

and records of the Authority shall be made available for inspection by any Participating 

Municipality at all reasonable times. 

 

ARTICLE XVI 

ADMISSION/WITHDRAWAL OF INCORPORATING MUNICIPALITIES 

 

Section 1. Admission. An additional Municipality may become a Participating Municipality in 

the Authority only upon amending these Articles in compliance with Article XXII below and, if 

a tax is authorized to be levied by the Authority at the time of the proposed admission, the 

electors of the Municipality seeking admission must first approve the tax. Any additional 

Municipality wishing to become a Participating Municipality in the Authority must also 

republish the amended Articles of Incorporation, consistent with Article XXII. 

 

Section 2. Withdrawal. A Participating Municipality may withdraw from the Authority by 

resolution of the municipality’s legislative body approving the withdrawal, a certified copy of 

which resolution shall be provided to the Board and the other Participating Municipalities at least 

twelve (12) months prior to the beginning of a new fiscal year for the Authority. Such new fiscal 

year shall serve as the effective date of the withdrawal. A Participating Municipality may not 

withdraw from the Authority during the period for which the Authority has been authorized to 

levy a tax.  

 

Section 3. Outstanding Indebtedness. A municipality that withdraws from the Authority shall 

remain liable for a proportion of the debts and liabilities of the Authority incurred while the 

municipality was a part of the Authority. The proportion of the Authority's debts for which a 

municipality remains liable as a result of its withdrawal from the Authority shall be determined 

by dividing the state equalized value of the real property in the municipality by the state 

equalized value of all real property in the Authority on the effective date of the withdrawal.  

 

Section 4. Contributed Assets. Any property owned by the Authority, which is in the 

possession of the withdrawing municipality or in the possession of personnel who will no longer 



9 

 

remain with the Authority as a result of the municipality's withdrawal from the Authority, shall 

be returned to the Authority before the effective date of the withdrawal. The withdrawing 

municipality shall not be entitled to the return of any credit for any property or money it 

transferred to or paid to the Authority prior to the withdrawal. 

 

ARTICLE XVII 

DISSOLUTION OF AUTHORITY 

 

Section 1. Procedure. 

 

A. Concurring Resolutions. The Authority may be dissolved by the concurring resolution of a 

majority of the governing bodies of the Participating Municipalities of the Authority. Prior to 

dissolution of the Authority any outstanding indebtedness of the Authority shall be paid.  

 

B. Outstanding Indebtedness. Prior to dissolution of the Authority, any outstanding indebtedness 

of the Authority, including any bonds issued under Section 21 and/or Section 23 of Act 321 

shall be paid. Any assets of the Authority remaining after the payment of any such 

outstanding indebtedness shall be distributed to the Participating Municipalities of the 

Authority at the time of the dissolution based upon each Participating Municipality's most 

recent financial contribution to the Authority. This subsection shall not apply if the Authority 

was ever funded by Authority tax revenue. 

 

C. Contributed Assets. Any land, buildings, and/or facilities that were contributed to the 

Authority by a Participating Municipality and is maintained, owned, or operated by the 

Authority shall revert back to the originating municipality, without charge. 

 

D. Purchased or Donated Land. Any land purchased by the Authority or received by donation 

shall be sold and the proceeds shall be shared in proportion to the contributions received 

from the Participating Municipalities, if at the time of dissolution, the sole funding for the 

Authority's budget has never come from tax revenue. However, if the Authority was ever 

funded by Authority tax revenue, then the proportionate shares for distributing the assets of 

the Authority remaining at the time of dissolution and after all debts of the Authority are 

paid, shall be distributed to the Participating Municipalities according to the formula arrived 

at by dividing the state equalized value of the real property in each Participating Municipality 

by the state equalized value of all real property in the Authority on the effective date of the 

dissolution. In all instances, the Participating Municipality in which said real estate is located 

shall be given the right of first refusal on the purchase of said real estate. In the event of a 

dissolution following a period of property tax levy by the Authority, any funds obtained via 

levy, and/or property purchased by such funds, which are subsequently distributed to the 

Participating Municipalities pursuant to this Article shall be assigned by the Participating 

Municipalities to public purposes consistent with the purposes approved by the electorate for 

the original levy.  

 



10 

 

Section 2. Disposition of Lands Acquired with MNRTF Funding. Notwithstanding the above 

paragraph, in the event that, at the time of dissolution, the Authority is in possession of lands 

acquired with, or developed with, in whole or in part, grant funds from the Michigan Natural 

Resources Trust Fund (hereinafter the "MNRTF"), the Authority shall comply with Act 451 of 

the Public Acts of Michigan 1994, as amended, and all applicable State law. The Participating 

Municipality in which the lands acquired or developed with MNRTF funds are located shall 

assume title and control of said lands. 

 

ARTICLE XVIII 

STATE, FEDERAL AND PRIVATE GRANTS 

  

The Authority shall have the power to apply for and accept grants, loans or contributions from 

the United States of America or any agency or instrumentality thereof, the State of Michigan or 

other public or private organizations or foundations; and to do any and all requirements 

necessary or desirable to secure such financial or other aid or cooperation in carrying out any of 

the purposes of Act 321. In the event that any grant, loan or contribution shall require a long term 

obligation as to the use, maintenance, or operation of a specific piece of property, the approval of 

the governing body of the Participating Municipality in which such property is located shall be 

required prior to the acceptance of the grant, loan, or contribution by the Authority. 

 

ARTICLE XIX 

INVESTMENT 

 

The Treasurer of the Authority when authorized by a resolution of the Board may invest general 

funds of the Authority. The Board must first approve the Treasurer's investment policy. The 

Board approved policy must then be submitted to the Participating Municipalities and a majority 

of the Participating Municipalities’ governing bodies must approve the investment policy. Such 

investment by the Treasurer shall be made in compliance with the laws of the State of Michigan.  

 

ARTICLE XX 

EXEMPTION FROM TAXATION 

 

The property of the Authority shall be exempt from all taxation and assessments, and no writ of 

attachment or writ of execution shall be levied upon the property of the Authority. 

 

ARTICLE XXI 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

The Authority shall become effective upon filing of certified copies of these Articles with the 

Secretary of State as provided by Act 321. 

 



11 

 

ARTICLE XXII 

AMENDMENT 

 

These Articles of Incorporation may be amended by an affirmative vote of a majority of the 

members serving on the legislative body of each Participating Municipality. This does not apply 

to an amendment to the Articles to allow a municipality to withdraw from an existing authority. 

Before the amendment to the Articles are adopted, the amendment to the Articles shall be 

published not less than once in a newspaper generally circulated within the Participating 

Municipalities. The adoption of the amendments by a municipality shall be evidenced by an 

endorsement on the amendments by the clerk of the municipality. Upon adoption of the 

amendment by each Participating Municipality, a printed copy of the amended articles shall be 

filed with the Secretary of State by the clerk of the last Participating Municipality to adopt the 

amendments. The amendments shall take effect upon filing with the Secretary of State.  

 

ARTICLE XXIII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

Section 1. Execution. These Articles of Incorporation may be executed in two or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute 

one and the same instrument. 

 

Section 2. Captions. The captions of these Articles of Incorporation are for convenience only 

and shall not be considered as part of these Articles of Incorporation or in any way limiting or 

amplifying the terms and provisions hereof.  

 

Section 3. Adoption. These Articles have been adopted by the Township of Odessa and the 

Village of Lake Odessa, each a municipal corporation located in the County of Ionia, State of 

Michigan, as set forth in the following endorsements, and in witness whereof, the Supervisor and 

the Township Clerk of the Township of Odessa, the President and the Village Clerk of the 

Village of Lake Odessa have endorsed thereon the statement of such adoption. 

 

The foregoing Articles of Incorporation were adopted by the township board of the Township of 

Odessa, Ionia County, Michigan, at a meeting duly held on the ____ day of __________, 2019. 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Supervisor, Township of Odessa 

 

______________________________ 

        Clerk, Township of Odessa 

 



12 

 

The foregoing Articles of Incorporation were adopted by the village council of the Village of 

Lake Odessa, Ionia County, Michigan, at a meeting duly held on the ____ day of __________, 

2019. 

 

        ______________________________ 

        President, Village of Lake Odessa 

 

______________________________ 

        Clerk, Village of Lake Odessa 
 
 

GRAPIDS 57662-1 590425v2 



Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 

 

Trustee________________________, supported by Trustee_________________________, made a 

motion to adopt the following resolution: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-42 

 

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A 2021 108SD FREIGHTLINER CHASIS FROM D&K TRUCK 

COMPANY AND THE OUTFITTING OF THIS EQUIPMENT FROM TRUCK AND TRAILER 

SPECIALISTS 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa owns, operates, and maintains a fleet of vehicles for road maintenance, 

including snowplowing; and 

 

WHEREAS, DPW Truck #6, a 1999 International Dump truck, has been found by Village staff to have outlived 

its normal expected operating span and is continuously experiencing failures requiring immediate and expensive 

repairs (please see the DPW Supervisors monthly report); and 

 

WHEREAS, the DPW Supervisor has sought and received quotes for a new truck to replace this worn out 

vehicle; and 

 

WHEREAS, after reviewing the received quotes, Village staff recommends the purchase of a 2021 108SD 

Freightliner chasis, for a cost of $78,992.00. A copy of this quote is attached as “Exhibit A;” and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to have this truck ready for Village use, it will also need to be outfitted by Truck and 

Trailer Specialists for $83,795.00. A copy of this quote is attached as “Exhibit B;” and 

 

WHEREAS, the DPW Supervisor actively utilized the MiDeal contracts while procuring quotes for this 

purchase.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1. The Lake Odessa Village Council approves the purchase of a 2021 108 SD Freightliner from D&K Truck 

Company for the price of $78,992.00. 

2. The Lake Odessa Village Council further approves the quote for outfitting this truck from Truck and 

Trailer Specialists for the price of $83,795.00. 

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions are, to the extent of any conflict with this resolution, rescinded. 

 

Ayes: 
 

Nays: 
 

Absent: 



 

Abstain: 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

Dated: December 16, 2019     _______________________________ 

                    Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 





















































ChangeNew Amended19-20 Activity19-20 Amended19-20 AdoptedDescriptionGL Number

Batch Add Budget Amendments12/12/2019 01:57 PM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

1/1Page: 

   40,000.00       46,900.00       46,367.44        6,900.00        6,900.00 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE TAX 101-000-441.000        
   13,025.00       36,000.00       30,444.37       22,975.00       22,975.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES                     101-101-801.000        

  (22,000.00)      30,000.00       19,635.73       52,000.00       52,000.00 FULL TIME WAGES                         101-441-702.704        

  (12,000.00)       3,000.00        2,334.37       15,000.00       15,000.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-BUILDING             101-441-931.001        

   (9,000.00)       1,000.00          389.50       10,000.00       10,000.00 PROJECT COSTS                           101-441-967.000        

   (9,000.00)       1,000.00           86.61       10,000.00       10,000.00 IRON REMOVAL                            591-536-937.000        

  (17,000.00)      83,000.00       45,923.89      100,000.00      100,000.00 INTEREST EXPENSE                        591-536-995.000        

                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                    

   40,000.00    2,323,093.45    3,428,903.09    2,283,093.45    2,267,347.00                                         Total Revenues:        

  (55,975.00)   2,088,763.34    1,486,069.89    2,144,738.34    2,073,287.00                                         Total Expenditures:    

   95,975.00      234,330.11    1,942,833.20      138,355.11      194,060.00                                         Net of Rev/Exp:        




